
City of Capitola Agenda

Mayor: Ed Bottorff
Vice Mayor: Stephanie Harlan
Council Members: Jacques Bertrand

Dennis Norton
Michael Termini

Treasurer: Christine McBroom

REVISED

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING

THURSDAY, MARCH 24, 2016

7:00 PM

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA  95010

City of Capitola                                Page 1                       Updated 3/28/2016 3:19 PM

CLOSED SESSION - 6:30 PM  
CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE

An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in 
the City Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.  Members of the public may, at 
this time, address the City Council on closed session items only.  There will be a report of 
any final decisions in City Council Chambers during the Open Session Meeting.

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR (Govt. Code §54956.8)
Property: 2091 Wharf Road, APN 034-241-05, Capitola, CA
City Negotiator: Jamie Goldstein, City Manager
Negotiating Parties: Joseph K. and Debbie A. Genge
Under Negotiation: Terms for potential purchase of property by City



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
March 24, 2016

City of Capitola                                Page 2 Updated 3/28/2016 3:19 PM

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - 7:00 PM
All correspondences received prior to 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday preceding a Council 
Meeting will be distributed to Councilmembers to review prior to the meeting.  Information 
submitted after 5 p.m. on that Wednesday may not have time to reach Councilmembers, nor 
be read by them prior to consideration of an item.

All matters listed on the Regular Meeting of the Capitola City Council Agenda shall be 
considered as Public Hearings.

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Council Members Dennis Norton, Stephanie Harlan, Jacques Bertrand, Michael Termini and 
Mayor Ed Bottorff

2. PRESENTATIONS

A. Proclamation in the Observance of American Red Cross Month 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: None.

B. Presentation by Rosemary Menard, City of Santa Cruz Water Director, regarding the 
Santa Cruz Water Supply Advisory Committee’s Recommended Water Supply 
Augmentation Strategies 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Presentation.

3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION

4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
Additional information submitted to the City after distribution of the agenda packet.

A. Item 10.C. Emails from the Public regarding the Red Light at 41st Avenue and Clares 
Street 

B. Item 11.B. Emails from the Public regarding the In-Lieu Parking Fee Program 

5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on 
any item not on the Agenda.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   
Individuals may not speak more than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must 
address the entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All 
speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so 
that their name may be accurately recorded in the minutes.  A MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is 
set aside for Oral Communications at this time.



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
March 24, 2016

City of Capitola                                Page 3 Updated 3/28/2016 3:19 PM

7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
City Council Members/City Treasurer/Staff may comment on matters of a general nature or 
identify issues for staff response or future council consideration.

8. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS

A. Make Nominations for a City Council Representative and Alternate Representative to 
the Newly Formed "FAA Select Subcommittee on South Bay Arrivals" 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Nominate Council Representatives.

9. REPORT FROM CITY REPRESENTATIVES TO REGIONAL BOARDS / COMMISSIONS

10. CONSENT CALENDAR
All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed 
below.  There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council 
votes on the action unless members of the public or the City Council request specific items 
to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered 
following General Government.

Note that all Ordinances which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have 
been read by title and further reading waived.

A. Consider the March 10, 2016, Regular City Council Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Minutes.

B. Approval of City Check Registers dated February 5, February 11, February 19, and 
February 26, 2016 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Check Register Reports.

C. Consider a Resolution to Establish Hours That Would Prohibit a Right Hand Turn on 
a Red Light at the Intersection of 41st Avenue and Clares Street 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Consider a Resolution setting hours that would prohibit 
a right turn on a red light from 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. at Clares Street and 41st 
Avenue.

D. Accept the Capitola Avenue Storm Drain Project as Complete 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept the Capitola Avenue Storm Drain Repair Project 
constructed by Johnson & Company, Inc, as complete at a final cost of $110,567.40, 
and authorize the Director of Public Works to release the contract retention of 
$11,056.74 in 35 days following the recordation of the Notice of Completion.

11. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
General Government items are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of 
each item listed.  The following procedure is followed for each General Government item:  1) 
Staff explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council deliberation; 5) 
Decision.



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
March 24, 2016

City of Capitola                                Page 4 Updated 3/28/2016 3:19 PM

A. Approve the Surfers Path Special Event Permit 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the new special event request for the Surfer’s 
Path Hang Ten and Hang Five event and to move the Surfer’s Path 10k/5k to 
February 26, 2017.

B. Review of In-Lieu Parking Fee Program 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive presentation and provide direction.

C. Authorize Further Expenditure for Engineering Staff Augmentation in the Public 
Works Department up to $100,000 within the Capital Improvement Program 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize Expenditure.

D. Zoning Code Update Progress Report 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Report.

12. ADJOURNMENT
 
Note: Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in 
which, by law, a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in 
the determination of facts is vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action 
within ninety (90) days following the date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6. Please refer to code of Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate 
when a decision becomes “final.” Please be advised that in most instances the decision become “final” 
upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion of the public hearing. Failure to 
comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City Council decision in 
court.

Notice regarding City Council: The City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month 
at 7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 
Capitola Avenue, Capitola.

Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials: The City Council Agenda and the complete Agenda Packet 
are available for review on the City’s website: www.cityofcapitola.org and at Capitola City Hall and at 
the Capitola Branch Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, prior to the meeting. Agendas are also 
available at the Capitola Post Office located at 826 Bay Avenue, Capitola. Need more information? 
Contact the City Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300.

Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet: Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
California, during normal business hours.

Americans with Disabilities Act: Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons 
with a disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990. Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting 
in the City Council Chambers. Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting 
due to a disability, please contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24-hours in advance of the meeting at 
831-475-7300. In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are 
requested to refrain from wearing perfumes and other scented products.

http://www.cityofcapitola.org


CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
March 24, 2016

City of Capitola                                Page 5 Updated 3/28/2016 3:19 PM

Televised Meetings: City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be rebroadcasted at 8:00 a.m. on the Wednesday following the 
meetings and at 1:00 p.m. on Saturday following the first rebroadcast on Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25). Meetings are streamed “Live” on 
the City’s website at www.cityofcapitola.org by clicking on the Home Page link “Meeting Video.” 
Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at anytime.

http://www.cityofcapitola.org


CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF MARCH 24, 2016

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Proclamation in the Observance of American Red Cross Month 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: None.

DISCUSSION: The City would like to recognize the American Red Cross for helping those in 
need during disasters. The Red Cross provides support to individuals and families recovering 
from, preparing for, and preventing disasters. The American Red Cross is an independent, 
nonprofit organization that depends upon the generosity of our local community for financial 
support. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. American Red Cross Month Proclamation

Report Prepared By:  Susan Sneddon
City Clerk

2.A

Packet Pg. 6



City of Capitola 
Mayor's Proclamation 

Honoring 

American Red Cross Month 2016 

WHEREAS, American Red Cross Month is a special time to recognize and thank 
our Everyday Heroes - those who reach out to help people in need; and 

WHEREAS, American Red Cross heroes help disaster victims recover. They give 
blood to help a hospital patient. They brighten the day of an injured service member. They 
step forward to help someone having a heart attack; and 

WHEREAS, we would like to remember our heroes here in Capitola who help 
people in need. They work tirelessly to assist their neighbors when they need a helping 
hand; and 

WHEREAS, across the country and around the world, the American Red Cross 
responded to disasters. When an injured service member ended up in a hospital far from 
home, the American Red Cross offered comfort. When a hospital patient needed blood, 
American Red Cross blood donors helped them. When a lifeguard jumped in to save a 
drowning child or someone stepped up to help a heart attack victim, the American Red 
Cross was there; and 

WHEREAS, we dedicate the month of March to all those who support the 
American Red Cross mission to prevent and alleviate human suffering in the face of 
emergencies. Our community depends on the American Red Cross, which relies on 
donations of time, money and blood to fulfill its humanitarian mission; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ed Bottorff, Mayor of Capitola, California, by virtue of 
the authority vested in me by the Constitution and laws of Capitola and California, do 
hereby proclaim March 2016 as American Red Cross Month. 1 encourage all Americans 
to support this organization and its noble humanitarian mission. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my hand this 24th day of March, 
2016, two thousand and sixteen, and of the Capitola, California. 

2.A.1

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 R
ed

 C
ro

ss
 M

o
n

th
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

  (
13

87
 :

 P
ro

cl
am

at
io

n
 A

m
er

ic
an

 R
ed

 C
ro

ss
 M

o
n

th
)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF MARCH 24, 2016

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Presentation by Rosemary Menard, City of Santa Cruz Water Director, regarding 
the Santa Cruz Water Supply Advisory Committee’s Recommended Water 
Supply Augmentation Strategies 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Presentation.

DISCUSSION: The City of Santa Cruz’s Water Supply Advisory Committee completed its work 
and made its recommendations to the Santa Cruz City Council in October of 2015. Rosemary 
Menard, Santa Cruz’ Water Director, will present the results of the Committee’s work and 
answer questions from Capitola Council members and staff. The recommendations include a 
range of actions involving additional water conservation measures and developing additional 
storage of winter water in local groundwater aquifers, which would also contribute to the 
replenishment of depleted groundwater aquifers. The plan also includes back-up measures to 
develop an additional source of supply using either advanced treated recycled water or 
desalinated water should the groundwater storage plan not prove to be capable of fully meeting 
the goal of developing 3 billion gallons (approximately the size of the current Loch Lomond 
reservoir) of additional storage to provide necessary supplies during dry years.  

FISCAL IMPACT: None

Report Prepared By:  Susan Sneddon
City Clerk

2.B

Packet Pg. 8



I \ 

Sneddon, Su (ssneddon@ci.capitola.ca.us) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Sneddon, Su (ssneddon@ci.capitola.ca.us) 
Monday, March 14,20167:49 AM 
'Roberta Jackson' 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL -ITEM 10.C. 
3/24/16 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Cc: 
Subject: 

Escalante, Rudy (rescalante@ci.capitola.ca.us) 
RE: "No right on red @ Clares and 41 st" 

Thank you for your comments regarding this March 24, 2016, Capitola City Council meeting item. I will add your 
comments to additional material for the meeting. 

Sincerely, 

Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
P 1831-475-7300 F 1831-479-8879 
www.cityofcapitola.org/ 

From: Roberta Jackson [mailto:birdie@warpnine.org] 
Sent: Friday, March 11,2016 12:37 PM 
To: City Council <citycouncil@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Subject: "No right on red @ Clares and 41st" 

Rudy Escalante informed me that this topic would be up for discussion at the next meeting. I recommend that 
we change the sign to say "No right on red from 10:00 am and 6:00 pm". I hope that this would be a successful 
first step in alleviating the traffic concern at that comer. 

Sincerely, Roberta Jackson 

E~ J~ 

~@",,~.M) 

1 

4.A

Packet Pg. 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 1

0.
C

. E
m

ai
ls

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

P
u

b
lic

 r
eg

ar
d

in
g

 t
h

e 
R

ed
 L

ig
h

t 
at

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e 

an
d

 C
la

re
s 

S
tr

ee
t 

 (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



ADDITIONAL MATERIAL - ITEM 10.C. 
3/24/16 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Sneddon, Su (ssneddon@cLcapitola.ca.us) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Barry Kane <sfobayguy@gmail.com> 
Tuesday, March 15, 20163:31 PM 
City Council 
Escalante, Rudy (rescalante@ci .capitola.ca.us) 
No Right Turn on Red at 41 st & Clares - Support Chiefs Proposed Time Changes 

Dear City Council Members, 
I want to thank our Police Chief Rudy Escalante for reaching out to our neighborhood about our issues with the 
no right turn onto 41 st on red issue. He listened and talked to a group of us and offered a compromise that 
allows non-peak time turns on red and still protects the intersection during peak hours with no right turns. 

I fully support his compromise proposal to the Council to change the times for the no turn on red from Clares to 
10AM to 6PM. This will help us greatly during non-peak traffic hours. 

We also discussed potential "Do not block the Box" striping for the intersection and enforcement to help 
mitigate the blocking of any turns from Clares Street westbound turn lane onto 41 st Ave during peak 
travel/vacation/holiday times by north bound drivers on 41 st who enter and then sit in the intersection, blocking 
our ability to turn onto 41 st during the Clares green signal rotation. This is one of our biggest problems at the 
turn lane during heavy traffic and prevents anyone from turning onto 41 st from Clares through 1 or 2 signal 
rotations. I have witnessed some road rage exhibited at the drivers on 41 st blocking the intersection, which is 
never good for traffic safety. 

Thank you for all you do for our city and taking the time to read my email letter and thank you again to Chief 
Escalante for his outreach and concern for our neighborhood. 

Warm Regards, 
Barry Kane 
1780 46th Ave 

1 

4.A

Packet Pg. 10

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 1

0.
C

. E
m

ai
ls

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

P
u

b
lic

 r
eg

ar
d

in
g

 t
h

e 
R

ed
 L

ig
h

t 
at

 4
1s

t 
A

ve
n

u
e 

an
d

 C
la

re
s 

S
tr

ee
t 

 (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



Deiter, Michele (MDeiter@ci.capitola.ca.us) 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS -ITEM 11.8. 
3/24/16 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: 
Sent: 

Nichols, Liz (Inichols@ci.capitola.ca.us) 
Monday, March 21,20169:38 AM 

To: 
Subject: 

Deiter, Michele (MDeiter@ci.capitola.ca.us) 
FW: Item 11 b In-lieu parking 

From: Rich Didday [mailto:rich@Indecsystems.com] 
Sent: Sunday, March 20, 2016 7:43 PM 
To: City Council 
Subject: Item llb In-lieu parking 

March 19, 2016 

Re:ltem 11 B Review of in-lieu parking program 

Dear City Council , 

I would like to address the question of in-lieu parking. As a member of the Traffic and Parking Commission, I 
know that the Commission recently discussed the topic of construction of a parking structure. The majority of 
the Commission were opposed to the idea of planning for a parking structure. They felt that the price is 
prohibitive and that the people of Capitola are largely opposed to such an expenditure. In the past, the Traffic 
and Parking Commission did a lot of work planning for a parking structure and was actively in favor of building 
a parking structure. At that time, I and some other members of the T&P Commission were in favor of the 
parking structure because we hoped that if the City of Capitola could increase the number of public parking 
spaces, the residents could benefit from it in the form of more permit parking in the neighborhoods most 
affected by tourist and employee parking. We all love our historic beach houses in the Central Village but 
unfortunately they usually have no off-street parking and their small streets are inundated with tourist and 
employees in search of parking. I think the City of Capitola needs to do something for these residents in the 
way of creating permit parking for some of the streets most affected by tourism. 

Also I believe that the residents of Capitola have spoken loudly and clearly regarding their opposition to a large 
hotel on the theater site. So I think neither a parking structure or a large hotel are in our future. But I do not 
think we should partition those 57 parking spaces out one by one for additions to businesses or residences. I 
believe that there might be a better use for those parking spaces, such as more permit parking in the 
neighborhoods, and that the Council should put any action on this on hold at this time and solicit public opinion 
on the best use of these parking places. 

Sincerely, 

Margaret Kinstler 
323 Riverview Avenue 
831-476-1340 

1 . 

4.B

Packet Pg. 11

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 1

1.
B

. E
m

ai
ls

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

P
u

b
lic

 r
eg

ar
d

in
g

 t
h

e 
In

-L
ie

u
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 F
ee

 P
ro

g
ra

m
  (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



ADDITIONAL MATERIALS -ITEM 11.B. 
3/24/16 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Deiter, Michele (MDeiter@ci.capitola.ca.us) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Nichols, Liz (Inichols@ci.capitola.ca.us) 
Wednesday, March 23,20162:59 PM 
Deiter, Michele (MDeiter@ci.capitola.ca.us) 
FW: 3/24/16 Council Meeting - Item 11. B 

From: Nels Westman [mailto:nels@bestwestman.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, March 23, 2016 2:52 PM 
To: City Council 
Subject: 3/24/16 Council Meeting - Item l1.B 

Dear City Council, 

I bring to this conversation over 35 years of working on Village parking issues. 

In 2013 the city proposed to resurrect its defunct and pretty much useless In Lieu Program as a tactic to insure 
that 57 parking spaces in Pacific Cove would be committed to the future Village Hotel and not be viewed by the 
California Coastal Commission as "Public Parking." To safeguard these spaces for that use and to guard against 
haphazard selling off of these spaces in onesy-twosey Village construction projects by connected developers, 
many citizens actively and successfully campaigned to have several safeguards included in the language of the 
program. These included: 

1. ONLY for a large hotel (20 plus rooms) or similar use which is the only use that will support valet 
operations during business hours to truly make these spaces viable for the customers of the new development. 
Without valet service these new parkers are simply added to the dismal congestion and parking shortages in the 
Village, completely defeating what you said you were trying to do. 
2. ONL Y for projects that can demonstrate major direct and indirect economic benefits to the Village and to the 
citizens of the City of Capitola. No residential. 
3. The cost of each space shall accurately reflect the current cost of creating that space in the context of a 
parking structure. That cost is currently about $30,600 plus land costs plus annual maintenance fees. Although 
the Council in 2013 gave themselves a loophole, these costs really should be paid in full and up front (no 
sweetheart city financing over 30 years with nothing down type deals). These fees are absolutely a cost of 
construction and the City has no business being the banker financing a developer's costs. This is truly an 
example of, "If you can't afford it, don't build it." 
4. Spaces are dedicated and restricted for use only by the purchaser and purchaser's customers. No public 
parking. Again, the idea is to insure they truly serve the new development and do not make parking in the 
Village even worse. 
5. All revenues from this program are restricted to parking improvements. 

I hope the Council can appreciate that if this In Lieu Program policy is gutted, there will follow a piecemeal 
onesey-twosey sell-off of those spaces. When the opportunity finally comes that the city can seriously negotiate 
a public-private partnership for a parking structure, there will be no spaces available for the city to offer. The 
inevitable result will be a worsening of the Village parking situation. 

I would urge the Council to stick to its long term vision of an effective parking strategy for the Village and not 
be lured into a short term sell-off of valuable parking spaces to well-connected developers to max out the value 

. of their real estate. In the meantime those 57 spaces will continue to provide desperately needed public parking 
to. support all Village uses. That's a good thing. 

1 

4.B

Packet Pg. 12

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 1

1.
B

. E
m

ai
ls

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

P
u

b
lic

 r
eg

ar
d

in
g

 t
h

e 
In

-L
ie

u
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 F
ee

 P
ro

g
ra

m
  (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



Thanks for your attention. 

Nels Westman 

2 

4.B

Packet Pg. 13

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 1

1.
B

. E
m

ai
ls

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

P
u

b
lic

 r
eg

ar
d

in
g

 t
h

e 
In

-L
ie

u
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 F
ee

 P
ro

g
ra

m
  (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF MARCH 24, 2016

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Make Nominations for a City Council Representative and Alternate 
Representative to the Newly Formed "FAA Select Subcommittee on South Bay 
Arrivals" 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Nominate Council Representatives.

DISCUSSION: Congressman Sam Farr has requested the City nominate a Representative and 
Alternate Representative from the City Council to represent the City on the newly formed “FAA 
Select Subcommittee on South Bay Arrivals.” This advisory body will be made up of 12 elected 
officials from Santa Cruz, Santa Clara, and San Mateo Counties, and will review the Federal 
Aviation Association’s work to address community noise impacts from its NextGen changes to 
flight paths into San Francisco International Airport.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Congressman Farr's March 17, 2016, Request Letter

Report Prepared By:  Susan Sneddon
City Clerk

8.A

Packet Pg. 14



8.A.1

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
n

g
re

ss
m

an
 F

ar
r'

s 
M

ar
ch

 1
7,

 2
01

6,
 R

eq
u

es
t 

L
et

te
r 

 (
14

11
 :

 F
A

A
 S

el
ec

t 
S

u
b

co
m

m
it

te
e 

N
o

m
in

at
io

n
s)



8.A.1

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
n

g
re

ss
m

an
 F

ar
r'

s 
M

ar
ch

 1
7,

 2
01

6,
 R

eq
u

es
t 

L
et

te
r 

 (
14

11
 :

 F
A

A
 S

el
ec

t 
S

u
b

co
m

m
it

te
e 

N
o

m
in

at
io

n
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF MARCH 24, 2016

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Consider the March 10, 2016, Regular City Council Minutes 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Minutes.

DISCUSSION: Attached for City Council review and approval are the minutes of the subject 
meetings.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft March 10, 2016, City Council Minutes

Report Prepared By:  Susan Sneddon
City Clerk

10.A

Packet Pg. 17



12698

Generated 3/11/2016 1:12 PM

DRAFT CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING ACTION MINUTES

THURSDAY, MARCH 10, 2016 
CLOSED SESSION – 6:45 PM

Mayor Bottorff called the meeting to order at 6:45 PM. He announced the items to be 
discussed in Closed Session, as follows:

LIABILITY CLAIMS (Govt. Code §54956.95)
Two Claims:

1. Claimant: Mercury Insurance
2. Claimant: Julie McDaniel

Agency claimed against: City of Capitola
Mayor Bottorff noted that there was no one in the audience; therefore, the City Council 
recessed at 6:45 p.m. to the Closed Session.

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7:00 PM
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Councilmember Dennis Norton: Present, Mayor Ed Bottorff: Present, Council Member 
Jacques Bertrand: Present, Vice Mayor Stephanie Harlan: Present, Council Member 
Michael Termini: Present.
City Treasurer Christine McBroom was absent.

2. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
City Attorney Condotti stated that the Council discussed the following tort claims:

1. Claimant: Mercury Insurance
2. Claimant: Julie McDaniel

There was no reportable action on these items. The tort claims are listed on the 
Council’s regular meeting Consent Calendar this evening. 

3. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
City Clerk Sneddon stated that 17 emails were received regarding Item 9.C.: Appeal 
of a Planning Commission Decision to Approve a Wireless Telecommunications 
Antenna at 1200 41st Avenue.

4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
None provided.

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS
None provided.

10.A.1

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 M
ar

ch
 1

0,
 2

01
6,

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

12
98

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



Capitola City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 12699
March 10, 2016

6. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
Council Member Harlan stated that the Capitola Branch Library 16th Birthday Party 
will be held on March 26th from 12 (Noon) to 2:00 p.m.
Council Member Norton stated concerns regarding the recent report that 52% 
of the County’s population has diabetes or pre-diabetes.
City Manager Goldstein provided an update regarding storm damages earlier 
this year.

7. REPORT FROM CITY REPRESENTATIVES TO REGIONAL BOARDS/COMMISSIONS
Council Member Bertrand reported on the "Villages" (community circle that is 
developed to support seniors in the community) first meeting in Capitola.
Mayor Bottorff, City Representative on the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District 
(District), stated that the District is looking at cutting back services to address a 
financial deficit.
Council Member Harlan stated that the City is finishing the Rosedale Area Paving 
Project that the Santa Cruz County Sanitation District started.
Mayor Bottorff stated that the recently formed mayoral committee (City Manager, 
Public Works Director, Council Member Bertrand, and himself) met to review the 
City’s Capital Improvement Plan Projects (Public Works Director Jesberg provided 
an update on the following projects: McGregor Park, Stockton Avenue Intersection 
Improvement Project, and 38th Avenue Project).

8. CONSENT CALENDAR
Peter Pethoe, 434 Escalona, Santa Cruz, requested that Item 8.F. be pulled for 
discussion.
Mayor Bottorff stated that Item 8.F. would be discussed after Item 9.C.

RESULT: ADOPTED ITEMS 8.A., 8.B., 8.C., 8.D., 8.E., AND 8.G. 
[UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Dennis Norton, Councilmember
SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand, Council Member
AYES: Norton, Bottorff, Bertrand, Harlan, Termini

A. Consider the February 25, 2016, Regular City Council Minutes 

B. Receive Planning Commission Action Minutes for the Regular Meeting of March 3, 
2016 

C. Deny Liability Claims and Forward to the City's Liability Insurance Carrier 

D. Adoption of Ordinance No. 1005 amending Municipal Code Section 9.30.020 to 
permit five (5) Surf Schools [2nd Reading] 

E. Approval of Plans, Specifications, and Construction Estimate for the Rosedale 
Area Paving Project and Authorization to Advertise for Bids 

F. Approve a Notice of Completion for the Rispin/Peery ADA Pathway 

G. Approve a Beach Lifeguard Contract with the City of Santa Cruz 

10.A.1

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 M
ar

ch
 1

0,
 2

01
6,

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

12
98

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



12700 Capitola City Council Regular Meeting Minutes
March 10, 2016

9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
Mayor Bottorff stated that Item 9.C. will be move prior to Item 9.A. 
C. Appeal of a Planning Commission Decision to Approve a Wireless 

Telecommunications Antenna at 1200 41st Avenue 
The following spoke against upholding the Planning Commission’s decision to 
approve a Wireless Telecommunications Antenna at 1200 41st Avenue:

 Marketa Bilkova, Five Branches University Assistant Professor
 Barbara Bush, local resident
 Marilyn Garrett, Aptos resident
 Sylvia Skefich, local chiropractor
 Joseph Leight, Trade Winds Mobile Home Park resident 
 Lowell W., local resident
 R. Martin, Soquel resident
 Bruce Tanner, local resident
 Gale, local resident
 Paul Lacques, Trade Winds Mobile Home Park resident

Pete Shubin, Verizon Representative, stated that the proposed cell tower complies 
with FCC regulations.
Peter Pethoe, 434 Escalona, Santa Cruz, suggested that the proposed cell tower 
be installed at a greater height resulting in less radiation to residents. 

RESULT: OVERRULED THE PLANNING COMMISSION DECISION TO 
APPROVE A WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATIONS ANTENNA 
AT 1200 41ST AVENUE AND TO UPHOLD THE APPEAL ON THE 
BASIS OF PROXIMITY TO RESTRICTED ZONING 
[UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Michael Termini, Council Member  
SECONDER: Dennis Norton, Councilmember
AYES: Norton, Bertrand, Harlan, Termini, Bottorff

A. Receive the 2015 Art and Cultural Commission Annual Report 

RESULT: RECEIVED REPORT
Council Member Termini stated that a family member of his is employed by 
Earthwork Paving Contractors, the contractor for the Rispin/Peery Park ADA 
Improvement Projects, therefore he will recuse himself in participating on Item 9.B. 
He left the dais.

B. Report on Rispin Mansion Park and the Rispin/Peery Park ADA Improvement 
Projects and Approval of Plans, Specifications, and Construction Estimates, and 
Authorization to Advertise for Bids for Certain Phases of the Project 

Peter Pethoe, 434 Escalona, Santa Cruz, suggested that the Rispin property be 
used for a hostel. 

10.A.1

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 M
ar

ch
 1

0,
 2

01
6,

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

12
98

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



Capitola City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 12701
March 10, 2016

RESULT: APPROVED THE RISPIN/PEERY PARK ADA IMPROVEMENT 
PROJECT; SETTING THE BID OPENING DATE FOR APRIL 13, 
2016; AND STAFF TO RETURN WITH PROPOSED PHASES OF 
THE PROJECT [UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Councilmember Termini
SECONDER: Councilmember Harlan
AYES: Norton, Bertrand, Harlan, Bottorff

8. CONSENT CALENDAR (continued)
Item 8.F.  Approve a Notice of Completion for the Rispin/Peery ADA Pathway 

RESULT: APPROVED THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR THE 
RISPIN/PEERY ADA PATHWAY; AND AUTHORIZE THE 
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS TO RELEASE THE CONTRACT 
RETENTION OF $12,713.50 IN 35 DAYS FOLLOWING THE 
RECORDATION OF THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
[UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Councilmember Harlan
SECONDER: Councilmember Norton
AYES: Norton, Bertrand, Harlan, Bottorff
DISQUALIFIED: Termini

10.ADJOURNMENT
Meeting adjourned at 9:00 PM.

____________________
Ed Bottorff, Mayor

ATTEST: 

______________________, CMC
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk

10.A.1

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 M
ar

ch
 1

0,
 2

01
6,

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

12
98

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF MARCH 24, 2016

FROM: Finance Department

SUBJECT: Approval of City Check Registers dated February 5, February 11, February 19, 
and February 26, 2016 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Check Register Reports.

BACKGROUND: Check Registers are attached for:

Account: City Main
Date Starting Check # Ending Check # Check/EFT Count Amount

2/05/16 82735 82783 50 $66,634.78
2/11/16 82784 82849 71 $247,403.80
2/19/16 82850 82901 52 $66,851.12
2/26/16 82902 82943 50 $236,308.90

The check register of January 29, 2016, ended with check #82734.  

Account: Payroll
Date Starting Check # Ending Check # Check/EFT Count Amount

2/05/16 4739 4745 92 $142,154.56
2/19/16 4746 4753 94 $143,054.45

Following is a list of checks issued for more than $10,000.00 and a brief description of the expenditure:

Check Issued to Dept Description Amount
82823 Michael Arnone PW Rispin/Peery ADA Improvements $18,100.00
82836 Santa Cruz County Bank FN Pacific Cove Financing - payment #9 $82,532.87
eft223 CalPERS Member Services CM PERS contributions PPE 01/22/16 $45,812.96
eft224 IRS CM Tax Deposit PPE 01/22/16 $23,999.99

82873 Kimley-Horn and Associates PW

Corp Yard grading, enhanced bike 
lane, Rispin/Peery Park Improvements, 
Stockton Bridge Parkway design, PW 
staff augmentation, Rail Trail phase 1

$22,166.19

82925 J Johnson & Co. Inc. PW Capitola Ave. storm drain repair project $60,065.01
eft228 CalPERS Health Insurance CM March 2016 Health insurance $58,846.00
eft229 CalPERS Member Services CM PERS Contributions PPE 02/13/16 $45,927.67
eft231 IRS CM Tax Deposit PPE 02/13/16 $23,282.44

ATTACHMENTS: 

10.B

Packet Pg. 22



Approval of City Check Registers 
March 24, 2016

1. 02-05-16 City Check Register
2. 02-11-16 City Check Register
3. 02-19-16 City Check Register
4. 02-26-16 City Check Register

Report Prepared By:  Maura Herlihy
Account Technician

10.B

Packet Pg. 23



10.B.1

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
05

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.1

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
05

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.1

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
05

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.1

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
05

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.1

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
05

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.1

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
05

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.1

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
05

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.1

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
05

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.2

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
11

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.2

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
11

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.2

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
11

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.2

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
11

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.2

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
11

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.2

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
11

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.2

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
11

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.2

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
11

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.3

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
19

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.3

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
19

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.3

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
19

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.3

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
19

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.3

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
19

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.3

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
19

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.3

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
19

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.3

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
19

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.4

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
26

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.4

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
26

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.4

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
26

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.4

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
26

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.4

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
26

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.4

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
26

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



10.B.4

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

2-
26

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

83
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF MARCH 24, 2016

FROM: Capitola Police Department

SUBJECT: Consider a Resolution to Establish Hours That Would Prohibit a Right Hand Turn 
on a Red Light at the Intersection of 41st Avenue and Clares Street 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Consider a Resolution setting hours that would prohibit a right turn 
on a red light from 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. at Clares Street and 41st Avenue.

BACKGROUND: In July 2012, the intersection at 41st Avenue and Clares Street was re-
designed for safety reasons, and to increase traffic flow and decrease congestion. During the 
re-design, the following changes were made:

 The No. 3 lane (the outside lane) traveling east on Clares Street, leaving the Capitola 
Mall, was prohibited from turning left. 

 The right turn lane for vehicle traffic traveling west on Clares Street at 41st Avenue was 
prohibited from turning right on a red light. 

 The concrete center median was reduced in size by eight feet.

 The red curb was extended on Clares Street along the north curb-line between 41st 
Avenue and Derby Avenue to reduce congestion and extend the queue line of vehicles 
preparing to make a right turn onto 41st Avenue.

DISCUSSION: Since the changes to the intersection, staff has received concerns from residents 
about the “No Right on Red” restriction. The concerns expressed were that off peak hours did 
not justify the need for such a restriction. Wait times during off peak hours, such as early 
morning or late evening, were extended due to lighter than normal traffic flow. Staff examined 
the accident data since the redesign. The table below lists the number of collisions at the 
intersection since 2007. In review of the accident data since the redesign in 2012, all of the 
collisions at the intersection occurred between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.

     
ACCIDENTS AT THE INTERSECTION OF 41ST & CLARES
2015 8
2014 5
2013 4
2012 5 * Redesign
2011 9
2010 13
2009 11
2008 15
2007 14

10.C

Packet Pg. 55



Traffic signal 41st/Clares 
March 24, 2016

Based on the examination of the hours of the collisions and the concerns by residents, staff 
agrees with the residents that setting hours prohibiting the right turn on a red light would 
improve traffic flow during off peak hours. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None

Report Prepared By:  Rudy Escalante
Police Chief

……

10.C

Packet Pg. 56



Traffic signal 41st/Clares 
March 24, 2016

DRAFT RESOLUTION NO. ____

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA
SETTING THE HOURS THAT WOULD PROHIBIT A RIGHT TURN ON A RED LIGHT FROM 

10:00 A.M. TO 6:00 P.M. AT CLARES STREET AND 41ST AVENUE 

WHEREAS, State of California Department of Transportation Traffic Manual designates 
warrants that allow for the setting of hours prohibiting turning movements where the 
combination of congested traffic, restricted view, and accident records indicate a need to control 
by prohibiting turning movements during peak hours of traffic; and 

WHEREAS, the area of Clares Street at 41st Avenue, specifically west bound traffic on 
Clares as it approaches 41st Avenue, with two lanes of traffic that includes a marked right lane 
for right turns onto north bound 41st Avenue and is controlled by an overhead traffic signal; that 
has limited visibility and traffic congestion during peak hours of traffic. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Capitola that the Public Works Department is hereby ordered to establish and post hours that 
would prohibit a right hand turn on a red light from westbound Clares Street on to northbound 
41st Avenue a from 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., seven days a week.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and adopted 
by the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 24th day of March 
2016, by the following vote:

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  

Ed Bottorff, Mayor
ATTEST:

______________________, CMC
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk

10.C

Packet Pg. 57



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF MARCH 24, 2016

FROM: Public Works Department

SUBJECT: Accept the Capitola Avenue Storm Drain Project as Complete 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept the Capitola Avenue Storm Drain Repair Project 
constructed by Johnson & Company, Inc, as complete at a final cost of $110,567.40, and 
authorize the Director of Public Works to release the contract retention of $11,056.74 in 35 days 
following the recordation of the Notice of Completion.

BACKGROUND: Johnson & Company has completed all work on the Capitola Avenue Storm 
Drain Repair Project. This project replaced an old storm drain line in the 300 block of Capitola 
Avenue to address intermittent flooding in the area.

DISCUSSION: The final contract cost was $110,567.40 which is comprised of the original 
contract of $106,081 plus $4,486.40 in extra work to pay for additional labor to remove a larger 
than expected amount of concrete during demolition. The contractor did an good job in 
completing the project, including adjusting several utility crossings, working with staff to make 
adjustments in pipe material and size, and coordinating with the nearby businesses.

FISCAL IMPACT: The project accounting is as follows:

Expenditures
Engineering $  10,255.00
Construction $110,567.40
Total $120,822.40

Funding
Original CIP $  10,000
CIP transfer $125,644
Total $135,644

The remaining $14,821.60 is available to transfer to other CIP projects in the future.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Notice of Completion

Report Prepared By:  Steve Jesberg
Public Works Director

10.D

Packet Pg. 58



  

RECORDING REQUESTED BY 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 
 
City of Capitola 
Public Works Department 
Attn:  Steven Jesberg 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, California  95010 

 
 SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER'S USE 

 
THIS INSTRUMENT IS BEING RECORDED FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA. 
NO RECORDING FEE IS REQUIRED PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE §27383. 

 
NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City of Capitola, owner of the property hereinafter described, 
whose address is 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California, has caused a work of improvements 
more particularly described as follows: 
 
PROJECT NAME:  Capitola Avenue Storm Drain Repair Project 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  Storm Drain Replacement 
 
to be constructed on property more particularly described as follows: 
 
DESCRIPTION:  300 Block of Capitola Avenue, Capitola, CA 
 
ADDRESS:  N/A 
 
APN:  N/A 
 
The work of the improvement was completed by: 
 
CONTRACTOR:  Johnson and Company 
 
ADDRESS:  600 Calabasas Road, Watsonville, CA 95076 
 
The work of the improvements was actually completed on the 16th day of February 2016, and 
accepted by the City Council of said City on the 24th day of March 2016 
 
Signature of City Official:  _____________________________ 
 
The undersigned certifies that he is an officer of the City of Capitola, that he has read the foregoing 
Notice of Completion and knows the content thereof; and that the same is true of his own knowledge, 
except as to those matters which are therein stated on information or belief, and as to those matters 
that he believes to be true.  I certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.  
Executed at the City of Capitola, County of Santa Cruz, State of California. 
 
 Steven E. Jesberg 
 Director of Public Works 
 
 Signed:  ___________________________________ 
 
 Date:   ___________________________________ 

10.D.1

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

o
ti

ce
 o

f 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
  (

14
07

 :
 C

ap
it

o
la

 A
ve

n
u

e 
S

to
rm

 D
ra

in
 R

ep
ai

r 
N

O
C

)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF MARCH 24, 2016

FROM: Capitola Police Department

SUBJECT: Approve the Surfers Path Special Event Permit 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the new special event request for the Surfer’s Path Hang 
Ten and Hang Five event and to move the Surfer’s Path 10k/5k to February 26, 2017.

BACKGROUND: Currently, Lifestyle Escapes coordinates two running events within the City of 
Capitola. The Surfer’s Path Marathon/Capitola Half Marathon in May, a race that begins in the 
City of Santa Cruz and travels into the Capitola Village and back out along Cliff Drive, and the 
Surfer’s Path 10k/5k race in the beginning of November, a race that starts in the unincorporated 
area of Santa Cruz County and ends in the Capitola Village. Both these events have had little 
impact on the businesses and residents in the Village since they end before 11:00 a.m. In 
addition, Lifestyle Escapes posts the “no parking” areas before the events and provides staffing 
to assist with street closures.

DISCUSSION: The owner of Lifestyle Escapes is requesting an additional event, the Surfer’s 
Path Hang Ten/Hang Five event. The Hang Ten and Hang Five event consists of a ten and five 
mile race. This event would begin in Capitola Village at Esplanade and San Jose Avenue, and 
then travels to Stockton Avenue and up Cliff Drive to Opal Cliff Drive. Both races would enter 
the unincorporated area of Santa Cruz County and return via the reverse route into the Capitola 
Village. The finish line is proposed for Esplanade at San Jose Avenue. The race would conclude 
at about 10:30 a.m. and the roadways will be open no later than 11:30 a.m. Lifestyle Escapes 
will post the same “no parking” areas as the Surfer’s Path 10k/5k races and will provide staffing 
to assist with street closures.

If this event is approved, the event organizer is requesting this event take place on October 23, 
2016, and move the Surfer’s Path 10k/5k that normally takes place in early November to 
February 26, 2017. The Surfer’s Path Marathon/Capitola Half Marathon will take place as usual 
on May 22, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: There will be nominal fees collected for event permits and any personnel 
costs associated with the new event.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. New Event Application
2. Map for Current Event
3. Map for Existing Event

Report Prepared By:  Susan Sneddon
City Clerk

11.A

Packet Pg. 60



Surfers Path Special Event Permit 
March 24, 2016

11.A

Packet Pg. 61



11.A.1

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

ew
 E

ve
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
14

05
 :

 S
u

rf
er

s 
P

at
h

 S
p

ec
ia

l E
ve

n
t 

P
er

m
it

)



11.A.1

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

ew
 E

ve
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
14

05
 :

 S
u

rf
er

s 
P

at
h

 S
p

ec
ia

l E
ve

n
t 

P
er

m
it

)



11.A.1

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

ew
 E

ve
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
14

05
 :

 S
u

rf
er

s 
P

at
h

 S
p

ec
ia

l E
ve

n
t 

P
er

m
it

)



11.A.1

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

ew
 E

ve
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
14

05
 :

 S
u

rf
er

s 
P

at
h

 S
p

ec
ia

l E
ve

n
t 

P
er

m
it

)



11.A.1

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

ew
 E

ve
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
14

05
 :

 S
u

rf
er

s 
P

at
h

 S
p

ec
ia

l E
ve

n
t 

P
er

m
it

)



11.A.1

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

ew
 E

ve
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
14

05
 :

 S
u

rf
er

s 
P

at
h

 S
p

ec
ia

l E
ve

n
t 

P
er

m
it

)



11.A.1

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

ew
 E

ve
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
14

05
 :

 S
u

rf
er

s 
P

at
h

 S
p

ec
ia

l E
ve

n
t 

P
er

m
it

)



11.A.1

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

ew
 E

ve
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
14

05
 :

 S
u

rf
er

s 
P

at
h

 S
p

ec
ia

l E
ve

n
t 

P
er

m
it

)



11.A.1

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

ew
 E

ve
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
14

05
 :

 S
u

rf
er

s 
P

at
h

 S
p

ec
ia

l E
ve

n
t 

P
er

m
it

)



11.A
.2

P
acket P

g
. 71

Attachment: Map for Current Event  (1405 : Surfers Path Special Event Permit)



11.A
.2

P
acket P

g
. 72

Attachment: Map for Current Event  (1405 : Surfers Path Special Event Permit)



11.A
.2

P
acket P

g
. 73

Attachment: Map for Current Event  (1405 : Surfers Path Special Event Permit)



11.A
.2

P
acket P

g
. 74

Attachment: Map for Current Event  (1405 : Surfers Path Special Event Permit)



11.A
.3

P
acket P

g
. 75

Attachment: Map for Existing Event  (1405 : Surfers Path Special Event Permit)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF MARCH 24, 2016

FROM: Community Development

SUBJECT: Review of In-Lieu Parking Fee Program 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive presentation and provide direction.

BACKGROUND: The City Council adopted Administrative Policy I-33 (attached) to establish an 
In-lieu Parking Fee Program (Program) on October 10, 2013. On October 8, 2014, the City 
Council directed staff to place the Program on a future agenda for further discussion.

DISCUSSION: The City’s Program was adopted to allow large Village hotel projects with valet 
service to satisfy parking requirements through the purchase or lease of parking spaces in 
Beach and Village Parking Lot #1. The Program would allow qualifying projects to purchase any 
or all of the 57 designated in-lieu parking spaces. 

The Program was made possible by development of the new Beach and Village Parking Lot #2, 
which added 233 new public parking spaces to the City’s inventory.  The 57 space inventory for 
the Program represents the surplus parking capacity over the 176 space deficit identified in the 
2008 Parking Analysis for Capitola Village.

An in-lieu fee program for the Village is consistent with the City’s 1989 General Plan and 
certified Local Coastal Program, which required new development in the Village to provide 
parking outside the Village but within walking distance (exceptions are allowed for non-historic 
residential uses, the Mercantile, and former Capitola Theater site). The recently updated 
General Plan reiterates the requirement to provide remote parking for new Village development. 

The adopted policy calls for City Council review of all requests to use the Program, and if 
approved, the cost for in-lieu spaces would be based on the pro-rated cost of constructing a 
parking structure. Revenue collected from the Program would be deposited into an interest 
bearing account established for the sole purpose of contributing to the financing of future 
parking facilities, such as a multi-level parking structure on the Beach and Village Parking Lot 
#1 property.

Since its adoption in 2013, staff has received inquiries from prospective applicants who are 
interested in development in and around the Village but cannot meet on-site parking 
requirements. Development concepts ranging from additional restaurant and bar uses, 
converting ground floor parking to commercial uses, and Village parklets (small dining areas 
located in vacated parking spaces) could be potential beneficiaries of an expanded Program.  

Members of the Traffic and Parking Committee, however, have expressed concerns about 

11.B

Packet Pg. 76



Review of In-Lieu Parking Fee Program 
March 24, 2016

allowing smaller projects to use the Program, citing that it could incrementally consume spaces 
needed for a future Village hotel and promote intensification which would in-turn exacerbate 
Village parking problems.

FISCAL IMPACT: None.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. In-Lieu Parking Fee Program: City Council Administrative Policy I-33

Report Prepared By:  Rich Grunow
Community Development Director

11.B

Packet Pg. 77



11.B.1

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 In

-L
ie

u
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 F
ee

 P
ro

g
ra

m
: 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
P

o
lic

y 
I-

33
  (

13
94

 :
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
In

-L
ie

u
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 F
ee

 P
ro

g
ra

m
)



11.B.1

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 In

-L
ie

u
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 F
ee

 P
ro

g
ra

m
: 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
P

o
lic

y 
I-

33
  (

13
94

 :
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
In

-L
ie

u
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 F
ee

 P
ro

g
ra

m
)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF MARCH 24, 2016

FROM: Public Works Department

SUBJECT: Authorize Further Expenditure for Engineering Staff Augmentation in the Public 
Works Department up to $100,000 within the Capital Improvement Program 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize Expenditure.

BACKGROUND: On October 22, 2015, the Council approved the expenditure of $20,000 from 
the Gas Tax Fund for Public Works engineering staff augmentation. This funding was coupled 
with other funding sources and was critical in getting the following projects out to bid over the 
last three months: 

 Stockton Avenue intersection improvements
 Capitola Avenue drainage
 38th Avenue Paving
 Rispin pathways (Phase I and II)

The previously allocated funding allowed Kimley-Horn to devote approximately 150 hours on 
these projects and the Park Avenue Sidewalk Project, McGregor Widening Plan, and a grading 
and paving plan for the Corporation Yard. 

DISCUSSION: Being able to utilize various staff at Kimley-Horn for different jobs and tasks has 
proven cost effective in augmenting public works efforts to complete projects. To continue this 
effort, staff is requesting authorization to expend up to $100,000 for staff augmentation 
purposes with Kimley-Horn. Over the next three months it is anticipated this effort will enable 
work on the Hooper’s Beach stairs, tennis court resurfacing, Clares Street traffic calming, and 
utility undergrounding projects.

FISCAL IMPACT: The $100,000 would be allocated from the current funding identified for the 
Clares Street traffic calming. Staff will propose replacing this funding as part of the next budget 
cycle. The current fund balance in the Clares Street project is $253,000. Upon approval, 
$100,000 of this funding will shift to a separate line item in the Capital Improvement Program 
Fund. The actual expenditures will be then tracked to the individual projects as they occur.

Report Prepared By:  Steve Jesberg
Public Works Director

11.C

Packet Pg. 80



Public Works Staffing 
March 24, 2016

11.C

Packet Pg. 81



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF MARCH 24, 2016

FROM: Community Development

SUBJECT: Zoning Code Update Progress Report 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Report.

BACKGROUND: The City of Capitola initiated an effort in 2014 to comprehensively update its 
1975 Zoning Code.  Over the past 18 months, staff solicited input from a variety of stakeholders 
to identify issues within the current Zoning Code (Code) and opportunities for improvement. 
Staff used this feedback to develop an issues and options paper which served as the basis for 
eight public hearings with the Planning Commission and City Council to provide staff with policy 
direction prior to drafting an updated Code.

Staff has completed a draft Zoning Map Code based on policy direction received during the 
issues and options hearings. On February 4, 2016, the draft Code Update was released for an 
extended public review and comment period. The draft Code is available for public review at 
City Hall, the Capitola branch library, and the City website at: 
http://www.cityofcapitola.org/communitydevelopment/page/zoning-code-update.

DISCUSSION: The Planning Commission initiated their review of the draft Code on March 3, 
2016, and held a subsequent special meeting on March 17, 2016. Several additional meetings 
will be necessary to complete a thorough, chapter-by-chapter review of the Code as requested 
by the Planning Commission. It is anticipated the Planning Commission will complete their 
review and forward a recommendation to the City Council in the spring of the 2016.

At the March 24, 2016, City Council hearing, staff will provide a brief oral report on the status 
and progress of the Zoning Code update process.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

Report Prepared By:  Rich Grunow
Community Development Director

11.D

Packet Pg. 82

http://www.cityofcapitola.org/communitydevelopment/page/zoning-code-update
http://www.cityofcapitola.org/communitydevelopment/page/zoning-code-update
http://www.cityofcapitola.org/communitydevelopment/page/zoning-code-update

	Agenda Packet
	CLOSED SESSION
	REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR

	REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	A. Roll Call

	2. PRESENTATIONS
	A. Proclamation American Red Cross Month
	Printout: Proclamation American Red Cross Month
	1. American Red Cross Month Proclamation

	B. Santa Cruz Water Supply Advisory Committee
	Printout: Santa Cruz Water Supply Advisory Committee


	3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
	4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
	A. Item 10.C. Emails from the Public regarding the Red Light at 41st Avenue and Clares Street
	Attachment: Item 10.C. Emails from the Public regarding the Red Light at 41st Avenue and Clares Street

	B. Item 11.B. Emails from the Public regarding the In-Lieu Parking Fee Program
	Attachment: Item 11.B. Emails from the Public regarding the In-Lieu Parking Fee Program


	5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
	6. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
	8. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS
	A. FAA Select Subcommittee Nominations
	Printout: FAA Select Subcommittee Nominations
	1. Congressman Farr's March 17, 2016, Request Letter


	9. REPORT FROM CITY REPRESENTATIVES TO REGIONAL BOARDS / COMMISSIONS
	10. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. Approval of City Council Minutes
	Printout: Approval of City Council Minutes
	1. Draft March 10, 2016, City Council Minutes

	B. Approval of City Check Registers
	Printout: Approval of City Check Registers
	1. 02-05-16 City Check Register
	2. 02-11-16 City Check Register
	3. 02-19-16 City Check Register
	4. 02-26-16 City Check Register

	C. Traffic signal 41st/Clares
	Printout: Traffic signal 41st/Clares

	D. Capitola Avenue Storm Drain Repair NOC
	Printout: Capitola Avenue Storm Drain Repair NOC
	1. Notice of Completion


	11. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. Surfers Path Special Event Permit
	Printout: Surfers Path Special Event Permit
	1. New Event Application
	2. Map for Current Event
	3. Map for Existing Event

	B. Review of In-Lieu Parking Fee Program
	Printout: Review of In-Lieu Parking Fee Program
	1. In-Lieu Parking Fee Program: City Council Administrative Policy I-33

	C. Public Works Staffing
	Printout: Public Works Staffing

	D. Zoning Code Update Progress Report
	Printout: Zoning Code Update Progress Report


	12. ADJOURNMENT

	Appendix
	2.A · Proclamation American Red Cross Month
	2.A.1 · American Red Cross Month Proclamation

	2.B · Santa Cruz Water Supply Advisory Committee
	4.A · Item 10.C. Emails from the Public regarding the Red Light at 41st Avenue and Clares Street
	4.B · Item 11.B. Emails from the Public regarding the In-Lieu Parking Fee Program
	8.A · FAA Select Subcommittee Nominations
	8.A.1 · Congressman Farr's March 17, 2016, Request Letter

	10.A · Approval of City Council Minutes
	10.A.1 · Draft March 10, 2016, City Council Minutes

	10.B · Approval of City Check Registers
	10.B.1 · 02-05-16 City Check Register
	10.B.2 · 02-11-16 City Check Register
	10.B.3 · 02-19-16 City Check Register
	10.B.4 · 02-26-16 City Check Register

	10.C · Traffic signal 41st/Clares
	10.D · Capitola Avenue Storm Drain Repair NOC
	10.D.1 · Notice of Completion

	11.A · Surfers Path Special Event Permit
	11.A.1 · New Event Application
	11.A.2 · Map for Current Event
	11.A.3 · Map for Existing Event

	11.B · Review of In-Lieu Parking Fee Program
	11.B.1 · In-Lieu Parking Fee Program: City Council Administrative Policy I-33

	11.C · Public Works Staffing
	11.D · Zoning Code Update Progress Report


